



**CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES
SYNDICAT CANADIEN DE LA FOCTION PUBLIQUE
LOCAL/SECTION LOCALE 3913
BY-LAWS & ANT-HARASSMENT POLICY & PROCEDURE**

Adopted Oct. 19, 1994

Amended Mar. 15, Oct. 24, Dec. 7 1995, Dec. 5 1996, Dec. 2 1997, Mar. 10, Sept. 30 1998, June 6 2001, Jan. 30 2002, Mar. 13 2002, Nov. 13 2003, Mar. 11 2004, Mar. 27 2008, Jan. 28 2010, and July 7 2011.

Preamble:

This organization shall be known as the Canadian Union of Public Employees/Syndicat Canadien de la fonction publique, Local/Section Locale 3913, at the University of Guelph. The membership of the Local shall consist of all Teaching/Service Assistants and Sessional Lecturers at the University of Guelph that fall within the bargaining units of the Local. The Local is committed to (i) the protection, maintenance, and promotion of the interests of the members of the Local; (ii) the regulation and improvement of the relations between employer and employee through collective bargaining and joint consultation; (iii) the improvement of the quality of teaching and education at the University of Guelph; (iv) the improvement and advancement of a system of quality, accessible, and public post-secondary education in Canada.

1. Local Executive Structure

A. The Executive Committee

- I. The Executive Committee of the Local shall consist of the Chairperson/President*, the Vice-Chairperson/Vice-President*, the Unit 1 and Unit 2 Chief Stewards, the Finance Officer*, the Communications Officer*, the Women's Council Chair, the Gay Bisexual Lesbian Transgendered Transsexual Chair (GBLTT), the Undergraduate TA Representative and the International Students' Representative. All Executive Officers shall be elected for a one-year term at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Nominations for the Executive Committee posts will be opened at the membership meeting before the AGM. All nominees for Executive Committee positions shall be members in good standing of the Local at the time of their nomination.

**For the purpose of interpreting the CUPE National Constitution these titles correspond to President, Vice-President, Secretary-Treasurer, and Recording Secretary.*

- II. The elections of the Executive Committee at the AGM shall consist of: (i) The vote to elect the Chairperson (ii) the vote to elect the Vice-Chairperson (iii) the vote to elect two Chief Stewards, (iv) the vote to elect one Finance Officer* (*any Finance Officer who cannot qualify for a bond shall immediately be disqualified from office and an election for another Finance Officer shall be held immediately), (v) the vote to elect one Communications Officer, (vi) the votes to elect one International TA Representative, and one Undergraduate TA representative, and (vii) the votes to elect Executive Members-At-Large. The Women's Council Chair shall be elected by the Women's Council, while the GBLTT Chair shall be elected by the GBLTT Council.

- III. Each executive committee position shall receive a monthly honorarium. The honoraria shall be three hundred (300) dollars each for members of the Executive committee. The level of these honoraria shall be decided at the AGM.
- IV. The elections of the Executive Officers and the Executive Members-At-Large shall be by secret ballot, and shall be arranged by the Chief Elections Officer. If Executive Offices remain vacant after the election, such offices may be filled in subsequent membership meetings. Until such time, the Executive may appoint members in good standing to the vacant positions.
- V. Quorum for executive meetings shall be a majority of the Executive committee members as elected or appointed on a temporary (interim) basis.
- VI. Executive Committee meetings shall be held weekly (but no less than once a month as per Article B.3.9 of the National Constitution) and shall be open to all members in good standing of the Local, except where the Executive vote to hold a session in camera.
- VII. Any officer of the Local, except the Women's Council Chair and the GBLTT Council Chair, may be recalled by a two-thirds vote of the membership present at a membership meeting. Notice of such a vote shall be given in the announcement of the membership meeting. A recall vote may only be called by the Executive if: (i) they have received a petition signed by at least 20% of the membership, or (ii) upon a two-thirds vote of the Executive. Ample time should be given at the membership meeting for the officer undergoing recall to speak on her or his behalf.
- VIII. If the removal of either the Women's Council Chair or the GBLTT Council Chair is at issue, the Executive Committee, by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote, may direct either Council to hold a special meeting to consider recall of the Chair in question.
- IX. After the recall of a member of the Executive, other than the Women's Council Chair or the GBLTT Council Chair, the other committee members shall have the power to appoint a member in good standing of the Local to fill this position until the next membership meeting, when they must hold an election for the vacant post. The successful candidate's term of office, in this case, shall run to the next AGM.
- X. The Executive Committee shall authorize the expenditures, implement the policy of the Local and make recommendations to the Local for their consideration. The Executive Committee shall, in consultation with the Grievance Committee, handle grievances at the stage of arbitration. In the absence of a functioning Grievance Committee the Executive shall handle all stages of the grievance procedure. Decisions of the Executive Committee should be arrived at by consensus if possible.

The Executive shall also authorize Leave(s) of Absence for those Executive members who will not be able to attend Executive meetings and Union events for a given period of time. Furthermore, the Executive may also appoint an individual (in good standing) to fill this position in the interim.

- XI. It is the Executive Committee's responsibility and duty as elected officers to make sure that the business of the Local is carried out in a timely and efficient manner. For this purpose, where, despite the best efforts of the Executive Committee (understood to mean that Article 10. (a) has been followed), quorum is not made for a General Membership Meeting, then it shall be the responsibility of the Executive Committee to ensure that the regular business, as defined in the Preamble of these Bylaws, of the Local continues. It shall be understood that this article can never be used to allow the Executive Committee to unilaterally modify these Bylaws.

B. Executive Members-At-Large

- a. Executive Members-At-Large shall include the Human Rights and Equity Representative, Health and Safety Representative, Guelph-Humber Representative, and the Assistant Chief Stewards. The Assistant Chief Stewards shall be representatives from the following: The College of Biological Sciences, the College of Arts, Ontario Veterinary College, Ontario Agricultural College, College of Social and Applied Human Science, College of Management and Economics, and the College of Physical Engineering Sciences.
- b. All Executive Members-At-Large shall be elected in the same manner as the Executive Committee, will have met the criteria of member in good standing and, where applicable, shall be a member of the constituency they wish to represent. If an At-Large position remains vacant, the Executive may appoint someone from that particular constituency or a suitable replacement. Recall provisions will also apply.
- c. Executive Members-At-Large shall have vote and voice at Executive meetings.
- d. Each Executive-At-Large position shall receive a monthly honorarium if they opt to contribute two (2) office hours per week towards the running of the Local. The honoraria shall be one hundred and fifty (150) dollars each for Executive Members-At-Large. The level of these honoraria shall be decided at the AGM. Where an Executive-Member-At-Large opts to attend Executive Meetings and contribute four (4) office hours towards the running of the Local, they shall receive the same honorarium as the rest of the Executive Committee.

2. Duties of Executive Officers:

- a. The President/Chairperson is the chief administrative officer and staff supervisor of the Local, and shall be responsible for the smooth running of the Local, and for contacts with other Unions on campus. S/he shall also be responsible for calling Executive Committee meetings, and fixing the date of membership meetings in consultation with the other Executive officers. S/he shall also have signing authority for cheques and other official documents. The Chairperson shall be the presiding officer at all Executive Committee or membership meetings, except where s/he designates a replacement, and shall be the chief spokesperson for the Local.
- b. The Vice-President shall be responsible for all contacts the Union has with organisations outside of the University. S/he shall report to the membership and to the Executive Committee on all business conducted with the Union and other Locals. The Vice-Chairperson may, in the absence or with the consent of the Chairperson, act as spokesperson for the Union.
- c. The Unit 1 and Unit 2 Chief Stewards shall organise and chair the Unit 1 and Unit 2 Stewards' Committees, respectively, coordinate their respective Unit's Assistant Chief Stewards, and shall be responsible for recruiting and coordinating volunteer office workers from among the general membership. The Chief Stewards will attempt to ensure that each department elects Unit 1 and Unit 2 stewards, and that each college elects Unit 1 and Unit 2 Assistant Chief Stewards. The Chief Stewards are required to report on their respective Steward's Committees at the Executive Committee meetings. The Chief Stewards shall be the co-chairs of the Grievance Committee.
- d. The Finance Officer shall receive and receipt all money of the Local and maintain properly the Local's accounts. Also, on behalf of the Local Union membership, the Finance Officer shall be responsible for maintaining, organizing, safeguarding and keeping on file all supporting documents, authorizations, invoices and/or vouchers for every disbursement made, receipts of all money sent to CUPE headquarters as well as records and supporting documents for all income received by the Local. The

Finance Officer shall regularly make a full financial report to meetings of the Local's Executive Committee, as well as a written financial report to each regular membership meeting, detailing all income and expenditures for the period. At the end of the fiscal year the Finance Officer shall be responsible for the presentation of a financial statement and a budget for the upcoming year. The Finance Officer shall ensure that the books and records are submitted to the trustees every six months and that all funds owing are forwarded to the National Secretary-Treasurer no later than the last day of the following month. At the end of his/her term of office, the Finance Officer shall turn over to his/her successor, all properties and assets, including funds, books and records belonging to the Local Union.

- e. The Communications Officer shall be the chief recording officer of the Local, and shall be responsible for keeping a full account of all executive and membership meetings. The Communications Officer shall also keep an accurate record of the membership, and shall be responsible for maintaining the Local's files. The preparation of agenda for Executive meetings and membership meetings shall also be a responsibility of the Communications Officer. The Communications Officer shall organise and chair the Communications committee. The Chairperson, the Finance Officer and the External Representative all have the authority to sign cheques. Each cheque has to be signed by at least two signatories.
- f. Each Member At Large shall represent the interests of their constituency, will maintain contact with the members and stewards of their respective constituencies, and will ensure that their views are put forth to the Executive as a whole.
- g. All Executive Officers are jointly responsible for the effective operation of the Local Executive and shall perform any additional duties deemed necessary by the Executive Committee.
- h. Every Executive Committee Member shall attend all Executive meetings and contribute four (4) office hours per week towards the running of the Local. Executive-At-Large Members may contribute two (2) office hours per week towards the running of the Local.

3. Councils and Committees:

- a. The Local shall have the following standing committees and councils: The Communications Committee, the Grievance Committee, the Unit 1 Stewards' Committee, the Unit 2 Stewards' Committee (which together shall form the Stewards' Council), the Gay, Bisexual, Lesbian, Transgendered, Transsexual Council, the Political Action Committee, and the Women's Council. Additionally there shall be a Bargaining Committee at such times as it is required by Article 7 and one or more Elections Committees as required by Article 8. Further, pursuant to the Ontario Labour Relations Act, there shall be an Internal Bargaining Committee made up of three (3) Executive committee members, one of whom shall be the Chairperson of the Executive committee. The Internal Bargaining Committee shall be charged with negotiating and ratifying any Collective agreement/s with the employees (if any) of the Local. The Executive Committee or a general membership meeting may establish ad hoc committees for limited terms as they see fit.
- b. The Communications Officer is the chair of the Communications Committee. The Unit 1 and Unit 2 Chief Stewards are automatically the chairs of their respective Stewards' committee and co-chairs of the Grievance Committee.
- c. The Elections committee shall be chaired by the Chief Elections Officer, who shall be elected at the last membership meeting before the AGM. Nominations for Chief Elections Officer should be made at the second membership meeting of the year. If quorum is not made at the second membership meeting of the year then the Executive Committee may open the nominations for the Chief Elections Officer.

- d. The Women's Council shall operate at arm's length of the Executive Committee and the membership shall consist of all women in good standing in the Local.
- e. The Gay Bisexual Lesbian Transgendered Transsexual Council shall operate at arm's length of the Executive Committee and the membership shall consist of all Gay, Bisexual, Lesbian, Transgendered, Transsexual persons, supporters and allies of the Council in good standing in the Local.
- f. All Chairs of Councils and Committees should encourage participation, by members of the Local, in their Councils and Committees. Each committee shall consist of at least three members, and Chairs should endeavor to get representation on their committees from all Departments in the University. Subject to 3 (g) below, no member of the bargaining units may be prevented from serving on a committee that they volunteer to be part of unless: (i) They fail to meet the criteria of membership in good standing, (ii) two thirds of the committee's members vote to exclude that member, or (iii) in the case of the Stewards' Committees, they are not members of the Unit that the Stewards' Committee represents. Any expelled or excluded member has the right to appeal this decision to the Executive Committee, which may over-rule the Committee's decision.
- g. All meetings of Committees shall be open to the members in good standing of the Local, except the meetings of the Grievance Committee, the Women's Council, and the GBLTT Council, who in turn may invite other members to attend from time to time.

4. Communications Committee:

The Communications Committee shall be chaired by the Communications Officer and shall comprise at least two other members in good standing. It shall be responsible for the Local Newsletter, providing notification to all members of Executive, Committee, and Membership meetings, including special meetings. The Committee shall also be responsible for the dissemination of agenda for the membership meetings.

5. Grievance Committee:

- a. The Grievance Committee shall consist of the Chief Stewards, and at least two other members in good standing of the Local.
- b. Grievance Committee meetings shall be closed, except that the Committee may invite other Union members to attend specific meetings. In all cases, the grievor shall be afforded the opportunity to make a presentation to the committee when the Committee is deciding whether to proceed with their grievance. Members of the Grievance Committee are expected to treat as confidential all discussions entered into by the Committee.
- c. The Grievance committee shall deal with all grievances. Decisions of the Grievance committee shall be reported to the Executive Committee by the co-Chairs of the Grievance Committee. Where it has been decided to withdraw a grievance or to proceed to arbitration, the co-Chairs must inform the Executive Committee before acting on that decision. The Executive Committee has the right to veto decisions by the Grievance Committee. The membership meeting has the right to veto decisions of the Executive Committee.

6. Stewards' Committee:

- a. Members of each Unit in each department shall elect one steward. The Unit stewards within each college will then elect one of from among them to be the Unit's Assistant Chief Steward within that college. Stewards serve from September to September, but may be recalled, due to dereliction of duty, by a petition signed by two-thirds of the Unit membership in their department. The Executive

Committee will then be responsible for calling a meeting of the Unit members in that department for the purposes of electing a new steward to serve until the next September. In normal circumstances, the outgoing steward is responsible for organising a meeting of Unit members in her/his department in September. If the outgoing steward is unable to organise this meeting, it should be called by the Unit's Chief Steward in consultation with members of the Unit in that department. A college's Assistant Chief Steward may be recalled, due to dereliction of duty, by a two-thirds vote of their Unit's departmental stewards.

- b. Stewards shall serve as Local representatives at the departmental level. Members having grievances, questions or information relevant to the Local operations should consult with their steward. The Unit Assistant Chief Stewards shall coordinate the activities of the unit stewards within their college, and substitute for the departmental stewards where necessary.
- c. The Unit 1 and Unit 2 Stewards' Committees, consisting of all elected or appointed Unit 1 and Unit 2 stewards, respectively, shall meet regularly to discuss matters of concern within each of their departments. These meetings shall be chaired by the Unit's Chief Steward. The Chief Stewards are responsible for reporting all recommendations of the Stewards' Committee to the Executive Committee.
- d. In the event that Unit members in a department are unable to elect a steward, the Executive may appoint a Unit steward for this department. The appointed steward must be a member of the Unit for which they will be steward, and must also come from the same college as the department for which s/he is appointed.

7. Bargaining Committee:

- a. The Bargaining Committee shall consist of the Chair of the Bargaining Committee, the President/Chairperson, the Chief Stewards, and at least one member in good standing from each Unit. In the event of vacancies the Executive may appoint members in good standing to these positions from their respective Units. The Bargaining Committee Chair shall be the Local Union's Staff Representative.
- b. The Bargaining Committee shall develop and present bargaining proposals to the membership for approval before presentation to the employer. It shall also be responsible for presenting any agreements made through collective bargaining to the membership in accordance with the CUPE Constitution. The Bargaining Committee is responsible for bargaining with representatives of the University, and shall also make recommendations to the membership in regards to the timing of strike votes. The Bargaining Committee is required to report regularly to both the Membership meeting and to the Executive Committee.
- c. The Executive shall call for the formation of a Bargaining Committee not less than six months in advance of the expiration date of the current Collective Agreement. The Bargaining Committee may (but need not) be dissolved following ratification of a new Collective Agreement.
- d. An honorarium shall be paid to each member of the Bargaining Committee.

8. Elections Committee:

An Elections Committee shall be struck at the following times:

- a. Leading up to an Annual General Meeting so as to handle the election of new Executive Members and Members-At-Large. This committee shall be chaired by the Chief Elections Officer chosen in accordance with Article 10. (b).
- b. When it is necessary to hold a ratification vote for a new Collective Agreement, or a strike vote.

- c. In the event that it becomes necessary to hold a referendum.
- d. Any other time it is deemed necessary by the membership to hold a formal vote.

In all cases there shall be one Chief Elections Officer for each standing Elections Committee elected at a regular membership meeting. In case (i) the Chief Elections Officer may comprise the entire Elections Committee. However, no member in good standing may be prevented from sitting on an Elections Committee except that they may be excluded from a committee handling the election of Executive and Member at Large positions if they are running for one of these positions. In all other cases the Elections Committee must include at least two additional members in good standing. At least one member of the committee must be neither a member of the Executive nor a Member at Large. In case (ii) at least one member of the Elections Committee must be someone who does not sit on the Bargaining Committee.

9. Trustees:

The Local Union shall elect three trustees as per Article B.3.10 of the CUPE National Constitution. The Trustees shall:

- a. Act as an auditing committee on behalf of the members and audit the books and accounts of the Finance Officer, the Communications Officer and any of their Standing Committees (if applicable) at least once every calendar year;
- b. Make a written report of their findings to the first membership meeting following the completion of the audit;
- c. Submit in writing to the President and Finance Officer any recommendations and/or concerns they feel should be reviewed in order to ensure that the Local Union's funds, records, and accounts are being maintained by the Finance Officer in an organized, correct and proper manner;
- d. Be responsible to ensure that monies are not paid out without proper constitutional or membership authorization;
- e. Ensure that proper financial reports are made to the membership;
- f. Audit the record of attendance;
- g. Inspect at least once a year any stocks, bonds, securities, office furniture and equipment, and titles or deeds to property that may at any time be owned by the Local, and report their findings to the membership;
- h. Send a copy of the completed audit report (on the prescribed form provided by the National Secretary-Treasurer), as well as a copy of their report to the Local Union membership along with a copy of their recommendations and/or concerns to the President and Finance Officer and the Finance Officer's response, to the National Secretary Treasurer of the Canadian Union of Public Employees, with a copy to the assigned servicing representative.

10. Membership Meetings:

- a. The Executive Committee is responsible for calling membership meetings, and of notifying the Communications Committee in time so that they can inform the membership at least one week before the meeting is scheduled to take place. The Executive should arrange five membership meetings during the academic year, including the AGM.
- b. Meetings should be held at the following times: (i) early October, (ii) early December, (iii) late January, (iv) the AGM in early March, and (v) sometime during the spring sessions or summer semester. The first meeting of the academic year should welcome new members, and may include a workshop arranged by

the Women's Council Representative. The second meeting should take nominations for the Chief Elections Officer. The third meeting should elect a Chief Elections Officer. The fourth meeting (the AGM) shall elect the Union officers scheduled to be elected at the AGM.

- c. All membership meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the current edition of Bourinot's Rules of Order. A summary of these rules of order should make up part of the workshop in the October membership meeting.
- d. The quorum for a membership meeting is no fewer than 20 members in good standing, or 5% of the membership at the time the membership meeting occurs, whichever is less. In the case of meetings or sub-meetings at which a vote is to be taken specific to one unit (e.g. approval of bargaining proposals) the quorum for a membership meeting or sub-meeting of Unit 2 only will be understood to be 5 members in good standing or 5% of the current Unit 2 membership, whichever is less.

11. Special Meetings:

- a. A special meeting of the membership may be called by a vote of the Executive Committee, or by a petition signed by at least ten percent of the membership. On presentation of a petition the Executive is required to call a meeting within one month, and in accordance with by-law 10(a). The petition must clearly state what business is to be discussed at this meeting.
- b. Special meetings are to be treated as if they were regularly scheduled membership meetings. The Executive may add other business to the agenda, but in the case of meetings called by petition the subject of the petition must be the first item of business.

12. Collective Agreement:

Collective agreements with the University must first be approved by the unit membership in a ratification vote by secret ballot. A majority of votes cast is sufficient to ratify the agreement. The collective agreement shall be signed for the Local by the Bargaining Committee.

13. Dues:

- a. The level of monthly dues shall be determined, initially, in the first membership meeting, after recommendations by the Executive Committee. Thereafter, changes to the dues can only be made by a referendum of the membership. Only members in good standing one week prior to the referendum may vote. The Executive Committee must give members at least a month's notice that a referendum will be held.
- b. A special assessment may be levied in accordance with the relevant provisions of the National Constitution.

14. Rights and Obligations of the Membership:

- a. Membership in the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 3913 have the right to attend all membership meetings with voice and vote. All members in good standing have the right to run for any office in the Union. Members in good standing also have the right to vote in any Union referenda.
- b. Membership in good standing is defined as anyone who has worked within the Local's bargaining units in the previous 12 months.

- c. Membership in the Canadian Union of Public Employees shall obligate the member to abide by the provisions of the National Constitution of the Union and the by-laws of the Local. All members must abide by any legal agreement entered into on their behalf.
- d. Any charges against any member or officer must be made in writing and dealt with in accordance with the provisions of Article B. VI of the CUPE National Constitution.

15. Strikes:

Any strike mandate vote must be approved by the majority vote of a unit membership meeting. After an affirmative vote in said membership meeting, the Executive must arrange a vote of all the members of the unit by secret ballot. All members must be informed at least seven days before the vote. Polling on the day of the vote shall be between 10.00 AM and 6.00 PM. The question on the ballot shall be the following: "As a Union member, I authorize my Bargaining Team to call a legal strike in the event that all possible formal avenues fail to produce a fair settlement."

- a. A simple majority (50% + 1) affirmative vote of ballots cast in the referendum is required before any strike action can be authorized.
- b. Payment of strike benefits shall be as per CUPE's National Defense Fund Regulations.

16. Amendments to the by-laws:

- a. These by-laws are always subordinate to the CUPE National Constitution (including the Appendix) as it now exists or may be amended from time to time, and in the event of any conflict between these by-laws and the CUPE Constitution the latter shall govern. Constitutional interpretation, including determination of conflict, is the prerogative of the National President. (Articles 9.2(c), 13.3, & B.7.1)
- b. These by-laws shall not be amended, added to, or suspended except upon a two-thirds majority vote of those presented and voting at a regular or special membership meeting following seven days notice at a previous meeting or at least sixty days notice. (Article B.7.1)
- c. No change in these by-laws shall be valid and take effect until approved by the National President of CUPE. The validity shall date from the letter of approval of the National President. (Article 13.3 & b.7.1)

17. Donations Protocol:

In keeping with the commitments of the Local as outlined in the Preamble of these Bylaws, the members may authorize, through a majority vote at meetings of the membership, the donation of money to individuals and groups based on the following guidelines:

A) General Guidelines:

- Solicitations from the organizations and individuals representing the following interests will be considered:
 1. Labour
 2. Social Justice
- Within each category, causes, the benefits of which are substantially local in nature, shall be the highest priority.
- Normally only one donation per year shall be made to any organization or individual.
- Only appeals for donations in aid of a cause or activity of a secular nature will be considered.

- Financial contributions will not be made directly to any political party or candidate.
- Appeals from sister CUPE Locals for funds to assist an individual member will not be automatically placed on the agenda of the GMM/AGM; however, individual members may place such appeals on the agenda.
- Appeals need not be presented in person but may be presented by proxy or other media, provided the appeal is placed on the agenda of the meeting.
- Donations for both categories shall not exceed the amounts allotted for them in the Budget of the Local without the notification and consent of the membership.
- A minimum donation of \$50.00 and a maximum donation of one-quarter (1/4) of the Budget allotment may be made to any one group or individual per year excepting time sensitive requests where the Executive may, when deemed necessary, also appeal to the membership to increase the \$50.00 maximum donation.
- In the absence of a GMM/AGM, the Local Executive may authorize donations up to \$50.00 for time sensitive requests. Total donations given in this manner are not to exceed half (1/2) of the donations budgeted per category.

B) Definitions:

1. Donations grouped under Labour shall be restricted to those requests for Strike Support and Solidarity. Appeals from striking Union Locals shall be placed on the Agenda of the first available GMM for consideration. In considering the appeal, the Executive shall consider the particulars of the individual case as well as the geographic location.
2. Donations grouped under Social Justice shall be restricted to those requests for aid, not including strike support, from individuals and organizations working towards any of the Objectives outlined in the CUPE Constitution. These are:
 - The organization of workers generally, and in particular all workers in the public service of Canada.
 - The advancement of the social, economic and general welfare of active and retired employees.
 - The defense and extension of the civil rights and liberties of public employees and the preservation of free democratic trade Unionism.
 - The improvement of the wages, working conditions, hours of work, job security, and other conditions affecting all employees including retirees pension benefits.
 - The promotion of efficiency in public service generally.
 - The promotion of peace and freedom in the world, and the cooperation with free and democratic labour movements throughout the world.
 - The utilization of our world's natural and human resources for the good of all the world's people while promoting the respect and conservation of the environment and the creation of sustainable communities and jobs.
 - The elimination of harassment and discrimination of any sort or on any basis; for the equality of treatment regardless of class, race, colour, nationality, age, sex/gender, sexual orientation, place of origin, ancestry, religious beliefs, or mental and physical disability; and the active opposition to discrimination of same wherever it occurs or appears.
 - The establishment of strong working relationships with the public we serve and the communities in which we work and live.
 - The elimination of persecution for convictions of conscience.

Appendix - Anti-Harassment Policy & Procedure

Preamble:

CUPE 3913 is committed to creating and fostering a healthy, equitable, harassment-free environment for all of our members, volunteers and staff. The purpose of this policy document is to provide a process through which issues of harassment can be addressed in an equitable and effective manner while respecting the rights of all of our members and members of the university community. This policy applies to all members of CUPE 3913, and all members shall be treated equitably under it.

While CUPE 3913 has an obligation under the law (as mandated by the CA and the OLR) to provide fair representation to all of our members who have been subject to disciplinary action and/or been unfairly treated in the workplace, the purpose of this policy document is to outline and detail the process to be followed in instances of harassment of an inter-Union (member to member), non work-related nature. The Union has an obligation to protect all members who have been victims of harassment. Using this policy document CUPE 3913 will endeavour to investigate and resolve complaints of harassment, and establish remedies where instances of harassment occur, in a manner that is fair, unbiased and timely.

Personal Harassment & Discrimination Policy

Section A - Definitions:

For the Purpose of this policy, Harassment is defined as a course of comments or conduct consisting of words or actions that disparage or humiliate a person in relation to one of the prohibited grounds contained in the human rights code. Further the Union prohibits harassment on the grounds of race, ancestry, place of origin, colour, ethnic origin (including language, dialect or accent), citizenship, creed, sex, sexual orientation, same sex partner status, disability, age, class background, record of offences, marital status, family status and the receipt of public assistance, political or religious affiliation, beliefs or activity, socioeconomic status, record of offences, physical handicap or disability, parental status, number of dependents, place of residence, appearance, mode of dress, Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (AIDS), positive Human Immune Deficiency Virus (HIV) test, Union membership or activity.

Harassment can include comments or conduct which are intimidating, threatening or abusive and may be accompanied by direct or implied threats.

For the purposes of this policy definitions and examples of harassment are as follows:

1. Harassment: one or a series of vexatious comments or conduct related to one or more of the prohibited grounds that are: a) known or ought reasonably to be known, or b) perceived or may be perceived to be unwelcome/unwanted, offensive, intimidating, hostile and/or inappropriate.
2. Examples include gestures, remarks, jokes, taunts, innuendoes, display of offensive materials, offensive graffiti, threats, verbal or physical assault, hazing, stalking, shunning or exclusion related to the above stated grounds.
3. Sexual Harassment: one or a series of comments or conduct of a gender-related or sexual nature that are known or ought reasonably to be known to be unwelcome/unwanted, offensive, intimidating, hostile, and/or inappropriate.
4. Examples include gestures, remarks, jokes, slurs, taunts, innuendoes, threats, physical, verbal or sexual assault, unwanted physical contact, invitations, leering, the display of sexually offensive material, solicitation, demands, penalties related to sexual orientation, marital, or family status, unwanted attention, implied or express promise or reward or benefit in return for sexual favours, implied or express threat(s) or act(s) of reprisal if sexual favours are not given.

5. Discrimination: action(s) or behaviour(s) that result in the unfavourable or adverse treatment or preferential treatment related to the prohibited grounds.
6. Examples include any differential treatment. Examples may include but not be limited to refusal to provide goods, services or facilities, refusal to work with, or failure to provide physical access.
7. Negative Environment: one or a series of comments or conduct that creates a negative environment for individuals or groups and are related to the above stated grounds. The comments or conduct must be of a significant nature or degree and have the effect of "poisoning" the environment. A complainant does not have to be a direct target to be adversely affected by a negative environment. It includes conduct or comments that create and maintains an offensive, hostile environment.
8. Examples include exposure to graffiti, signs, cartoons, remarks, exclusion, and adverse treatment related to one or more of the prohibited grounds.
9. Systematic Harassment/Discrimination: policies, practices, procedures, actions or inactions, that appear neutral, but have an adverse impact associated with one of the above stated grounds.

Section B – Complaint Procedure:

If you are experiencing harassment, please contact the Equity Officer as soon as possible to set up a meeting and discuss your complaint.

If you contact a member of the Executive or Staff, they will direct you to the Equity Officer.

In situations where the Equity Officer position is vacant, a Staff Representative will be assigned to hear your complaint. If, for any reason, you are uncomfortable speaking to the Equity Officer, or assigned Staff Representative, an alternate Representative will be assigned.

The role of the Equity Officer or Representative is to mediate the complaint from the position of a disinterested third party. All meetings are confidential.

*Where the term "Equity Officer" is used in this document, it shall be understood to refer to the representative assigned to the case.

The Equity Officer shall meet with the Complainant within 5 working days of receiving a request to meet. They shall meet in a 'safe space' (i.e. outside the Union office) amenable to both parties. The purpose of this meeting will be to:

- a) Inform the Complainant of the process;
- b) Hear the complaint in as much detail as the Complainant is comfortable giving;
- c) Come to a decision as to whether this case falls under this procedure or that of the Collective Agreement. (If the latter is the case this process will cease and the case will be pursued under the Collective Agreement).
- d) Inform Complainant of the right to Union representation;
- e) Discuss amount of detail to be put in written complaint (if it is to be followed through);
- f) Put complaint in writing with Union rep.

Section C – Informal Complaint Stage:

Immediately following the meeting with the Complainant, the Equity Officer shall contact the Respondent, and request a meeting to be held within 5 days.

They shall meet in a 'safe space' amenable to both parties. The purpose of this meeting will be to:

- a) discuss the complaint in a level of detail as agreed upon beforehand by the Complainant;
- b) discuss an appropriate response as agreed upon beforehand by the Complainant;
- c) discuss the willingness of the Respondent to meet the remedies sought by the complainant; and

- d) discuss any other measures the Respondent or Equity Officer may deem appropriate.

The role of the Equity Officer is to mediate a fair resolution amenable to both parties.

Possible measures implemented in response to a complaint may include, but not be limited to:

- a) a written and/or personal apology;
- b) anti-harassment training, (in cases where the Respondent has not already undergone anti-harassment training);
- c) if applicable, the Respondent's resignation from their position on the exec;

If the Respondent is unwilling to commit to the remedies sought by the complainant, or is unresponsive after 5 working days, the Equity Officer shall convene a meeting with the Complainant to discuss alternate means of action, e.g. filing a formal complaint.

The Equity Officer shall keep a confidential record of all proceedings, in a secure storage space. These records may be opened (assuming the Complainant is agreeable) only in cases where any agreements reached and or remedies committed to at the informal stage are not upheld or are reneged on.

Section D – Formal Complaint Stage:

In the context of a formal complaint, the role of the Equity Officer will be to inform all parties of their rights and obligations.

Within 5 working days of the Complainant's written request to initiate a Formal complaint, the Equity Officer shall form a Complaint Review Committee (CRC). The CRC shall consist of three members - the President or Vice-President, the Women's Council Representative or LGBT Council Representative, and a Steward from a College to which neither the Complainant, nor the Respondent are affiliated. Where the Respondent happens to be one of the above potential members of the CRC, an alternate shall be appointed by the other two.

No person who is or has been privy and/or party to the instances bringing about the complaint shall sit on the CRC.

Where Staff had not been an integral part of the Informal Level, they may be asked to (and if they agree), they may sit on the CRC in cases where there are no members occupying the designated positions.

The CRC shall meet with the Complainant and their representative within 5 working days of the formation of the committee. They shall meet in a 'safe space' (i.e. outside the Union office) amenable to both parties. The purpose of this meeting will be to:

- a) hear the formal complaint;
- b) request information regarding witnesses;
- c) put the formal complaint in writing.

The CRC will contact any witnesses to set up a meeting (no information regarding the details of the complaint will be given over the phone or via email) and gather written testimony.

The CRC will contact the Respondent and their representative immediately following the meeting with the Complainant, and request a meeting within 5 working days.

They shall meet in a 'safe space' amenable to both parties. The purpose of this meeting will be to:

- a) present the Respondent with the formal complaint;
- b) request information regarding witnesses (if applicable);
- c) discuss the possible resolutions as described in this policy document;
- d) request that the Respondent cease contact with the Complainant, until such time when a resolution is achieved; and
- e) request a written response from the Respondent.

In the case where the Respondent fails to cooperate the Complainant shall immediately be so informed and the CRC shall have the authority to impose sanctions on the basis of non-cooperation.

The CRC will contact any witnesses to set up a meeting (no information regarding the details of the complaint will be given over the phone or via email) and gather written testimony.

After both meetings have taken place and all testimony has been gathered, but within a period not exceeding 14 working days, the CRC shall reconvene and reach a conclusion regarding the complaint, i.e. refer to a higher authority or to implement any of the below measures.

The measures or judgments that the CRC may impose upon the Respondent may include, but not be limited to:

- a) a written and/or personal apology;
- b) anti-harassment training, (in cases where the Respondent has not already undergone anti-harassment training);
- c) revoking the Respondent's position in the Union; and/or

In cases where the CRC deems it necessary they shall refer the case to:

- a) CUPE Ontario; or
- b) The Human Rights and Equity Office.

The CRC may also reach a decision of "no judgment," if they find:

- a) a lack of evidence; or
- b) the case to be vexatious.

Minutes from all meetings shall be kept on record in the Union office.